
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first

Petition Hearing - 
Cabinet Member 
for Finance, 
Property and 
Business Services
Date: WEDNESDAY, 26 

SEPTEMBER 2018

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting 

Cabinet Member hearing the petitions: 

Councillor Jonathan Bianco, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Property and 
Business Services (Chairman)

How the hearing works: 

The petition organiser (or his/her 
nominee) can address the Cabinet 
Member for a short time and in turn the 
Cabinet Member may also ask questions. 

Local ward councillors are invited to these 
hearings and may also be in attendance. 

After hearing all the views expressed, the 
Cabinet Member will make a formal 
decision. This decision will be published 
and sent to the petition organisers shortly 
after the meeting confirming the action to 
be taken by the Council.

Published: Monday, 24 September 
2018
Contact: Nikki O'Halloran
Tel: 01895 250472
Email: petitions@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at: 
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=269&Year=0 

Public Document Pack

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=269&Year=0


Useful information for 
residents and visitors

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room. 

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms. 

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS MAY ATTEND

1 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

2 To confirm that the business of the meeting will take place in public.

3 To consider the report of the officers on the following petitions received. 
Please note that individual petitions may overrun their time slots.  Although individual petitions 
may start later than advertised, they will not start any earlier than the advertised time. 

Start  
Time

Title of Report Ward Page

4  7pm Petition Regarding Brookside Playing Fields* Yeading 1 - 22

5  7.30pm Petition Requesting Installation Of A Water 
Fountain And Toilets At The Running Track At 
Kings College Playing Fields*

Eastcote & 
East Ruislip

23 - 26

*Reasons for Urgency
To ensure that residents’ views are considered before a decision is made by the Cabinet 
Member.



This page is intentionally left blank



PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
 

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 26 September 2018 

PETITION REGARDING BROOKSIDE PLAYING FIELDS

Cabinet Member(s) Councillor Jonathan Bianco

Cabinet Portfolio(s) Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Business Services

Officer Contact(s) Adrian Batten, Residents Services

Papers with report Appendix A - Draft Master Plan

HEADLINES

Summary This report concerns a petition received signed by 247 residents 
requesting additional facilities for local residents: footpaths around 
the park, football pitch, cricket pitch, tennis court and a running 
track, lighting and cameras each side of Brookside Open Space.

Putting our 
Residents First

This report supports the following Council objectives of: Our People; 
Our Natural Environment; Our Built Environment; Our Heritage and 
Civic Pride; Strong financial management.

Financial Cost Estimated costs would be £2.2m to deliver the petitioners’ 
requests.

Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee

Residents', Education and Environmental Services 

Relevant Ward(s) Yeading

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Business Services: 
1. meets with petitioners and listens to their concerns; 
2. asks Officers to further explore the Chrysalis Scheme for funding in addition to 

what has already been carried out and what is currently agreed through the 
Chrysalis Scheme; and 

3. notes there are currently two Chrysalis applications that have been submitted for 
consideration relating to construction of the northern footpaths and reinstatement 
of the old football pitch and cricket strip.

Reasons for recommendations

To give the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss with the petitioners their concerns and 
aspirations awaiting approval. 

To investigate in further detail the potential to address the petitioners' concerns. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
 

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 26 September 2018 

Alternative options considered / risk management

Options will be discussed with the petitioners. 

Policy Overview Committee comments

None at this stage.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. A petition was received containing 247 signatures requesting additional facilities for local 
residents at Brookside playing fields: footpaths around the park, football pitch, cricket pitch, 
tennis court and a running track, lighting and cameras each side of the Brookside Open 
Space.

2. Brookside Playing Fields is a large site in the middle of a built up part of the Borough. It is 
popular with many local residents for informal recreation, just before you enter the open 
space from Brookside Road there is an outdoor gym and children's playground.  The site 
offers a tranquil area to walk around as well as cut through to the adjoining housing estate. 

3. A draft Master Plan has been drawn up containing all of the requests of the petition (copy 
attached) with indicative costs in the region of £2.2m, to inform any future decisions.

4. The two items listed below have been entered onto the Chrysalis waiting list for 2019/20 for 
Brookside Open Space and are awaiting approval.  This is in addition to the southern footpath 
that has already been installed using Chrysalis funding.

1. Construction of the northern section of footpath - £55,000
This will then link up with the two other sections that the Council is building on site this month.  
See attached site plan.

If/when the northern section is built, it will mean that the whole of the open space has a path all 
around the outside, this can also double up as a running/jogging circuit, as people can also use 
the central tarmac path to reduce the length that they want to run, or use it as a figure of 8.

2. Reinstatement of the old football pitch and cricket strip - £30,000
This will involve improving the current grass cutting regime to that for a football pitch and installing 
two new goals.

The cricket pitch would be an artificial grass strip on a stone base.  The grass areas for the outfield 
would need to be improved and cut on a more regular basis than they are at present. 

The exact location of these two pitches will need to be agreed on site with Green Spaces and the 
Community Group.

This is in addition to the two footpaths that have already been installed to the cost of £67k, and a 
further £102k spent on refurbishment of playground and installation of an outdoor gym.

Page 2



PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
 

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 26 September 2018 

Financial Implications

In order to cater for all the requests of the petition, indicative costs of £2,200k have been estimated 
by the Council’s Highways consultants.  This would be a very expensive project and will not 
receive funding from Sports England as similar facilities have been provided in the neighbouring 
Borough which is a short distance away.  If these requests are considered to proceed, then 
funding will have to be identified from a suitable funding source within the Medium Term Financial 
Forecast and would require a call on Council resources, increasing future capital financing 
revenue costs.

Works have already been carried out at Brookside Open Space in the past three years at a total 
cost of £169k on the central footpath, southern perimeter footpath, playground refurbishment and 
installation of outdoor gym from the Chrysalis Programme budget, funded through Council 
resources.

Subject to approval, there are a further two more schemes that could potentially proceed in 
2019/20 from the Chrysalis Programme budget of £1,000k to construct a northern section 
perimeter footpath and reinstatement of the old football pitch and cricket wicket at a total 
estimated cost of £85k, all funded through Council resources.  These schemes would not require 
additional maintenance costs as the Green Spaces team already maintains Brookside Open 
Space as part of its scheduled works and this cost is already incorporated in the current revenue 
budget.

Future improvements to Brookside Open Space, in addition to the above two schemes, could be 
considered within future years’ Chrysalis funding beyond 2019/20, subject to Cabinet Member 
approval.

RESIDENT BENEFIT & CONSULTATION

The benefit or impact upon Hillingdon residents, service users and communities?

The Petition Hearing will allow for consideration of petitioners’ concerns with the required facilities 
and possible options to come to an amicable agreement. 

Consultation carried out or required

None at this stage. 

CORPORATE CONSIDERATIONS 

Corporate Finance

Corporate Finance has reviewed this report and confirms that there are no direct financial 
implications arising from the recommended consideration petitioners’ concerns.  Specific costs 
relating to potential courses of actions are detailed above, with potential investment in the site 
representing a significant addition to the Council’s Capital Programme.

Legal

Borough Solicitor confirms that there are no specific legal implications arising from this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Brookside Open Space Master Plan

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



BROOKSIDE OPEN SPACE MASTERPLAN
March 2018

Document Reference:1000004529

P
age 5



2

Document Control

Report Reference Issue Description Originator Checked Authorised

1000004529- Brookside Open Space - Masterplan Report 01 Concept Design
Jamie Nayar 

08/03/2018

Joao Toscano 

08/03/2018

Sam Neal 

08/03/2018

Contact
Sam Neal

Associate Director - DesignWorks

Sam.Neal@projectcentre.co.uk

+44 (0) 7342 065641 

Project Centre

Unit 2 Holford Yard

London

WC1X 9HD

0330 0080 855

1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

P
age 6



3

Contents

1.0	 INTRODUCTION	 4

2.0	 SITE ANALYSIS	 5

3.0	 SITE VISIT	 6

4.0	 CASE STUDY - SPIKES BRIDGE PARK	 7

5.0	 DESIGN PRINCIPLES	 9

6.0	 CONCEPT DESIGN OPTIONS	 10

7.0	 HIGH LEVEL CONCEPT DESIGN MASTERPLAN	 11

8.0	 ELEMENTS - PRECEDENTS	 12

9.0	 HIGH LEVEL COST ESTIMATE	 15

10.0	 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	 16

1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

P
age 7



41000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

1.0	 Introduction

Project Centre has been appointed by Hillingdon Council to provide a masterplan 

proposal for Brookside Open Space that will aim to re-vitalise this large open green 

space and provide high quality sports, leisure and civic facilities for its residents. This 

proposal will focus on the items required in the brief whilst adding a few complementary 

assets and activities for the council to consider. Our design will aim at creating an 

inclusive green space that responds to the needs of a diverse range of age groups and 

cultures as well as ensuring that the space feels safe and calm. The design will be in line 

with current best practice, creating new walking and cycle routes as well as encouraging 

a healthy lifestyle.

Background

Hillingdon is a borough situated within the west of Greater London and north of the 

River Thames. As with many boroughs in Greater London, Hillingdon is experiencing a 

significant population increase, largely due to improvements in transport links to central 

London which have made it a very attractive location for commuters. Although the link to 

central London is the key driver for this new found attractiveness, Hillingdon has a strong 

local community feel that renders a unique character to the place. Our design proposals 

aim to capture and celebrate this.

Vision

Our vision is to deliver a transformational change to Brookside Open Space. Our 

proposals will be grounded in best-practice for sports parks, strong landscape design 

principles and sound implementation experience.

Outcomes

The anticipated outcomes are:

•	 A well designed sports and leisure area which meets the residents needs for a 

better green space.

•	 An improved experience for pedestrians and cyclists

•	 Healthier more sustainable lifestyles being promoted within the local community

•	 Positive interaction between different age groups and cultures

•	 Local businesses could be supported by improved green space and increased 

footfall

Figure 1    Wider context - aerial view

SOUTHALL 
STATION

BROOKSIDE 
OPEN SPACE

N

P
age 8



5 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

Yeading Brook

2.0	 Site Analysis

Figure 2    Site analysis diagram

Brookside Open Space is located on the edge of Hillingdon 

Council and adjacent to the west of the Yeading Valley 

which is part of the Yeading Brook Meadows nature reserve. 

This important environmental asset currently separates 

the Brookside Open Space from Spikes Bridge Park, a 

successful sports and leisure park that has recently been 

refurbished and amplified.

The proximity between these two open green spaces 

provides the possibility of creating some sinergies that will 

provide the local population with a diverse and high quality 

offer of sports and leisure activities. 

Figure 2 illustrates a variety of characteristics that will 

inform the design principles and the proposed high level 

masterplan.

These characteristics are: 

•	 Distance to Spikes Bridge Park - between 5-15min, 

depending on where you start your journey and route 

taken 

•	 2no. civic entrances along the same alignment: from 

Brookside Road on the south and the residential 

community to the north  

•	 1no. nature reserve entrance on the north-east corner 

of the space which links the park to both Yeading Valley 

and Spikes Bridge Park (through a pedestrian bridge)

•	 Prevailing WSW winds as per Figure 3 

There are also some relevant assets adjacent to the 

Brookside Road entrance that will be important to consider:    

•	 An open green area to the west

•	 A play area that has been recently been restored to the 

west of the car parking

•	 Car parking area - 15no. parking bays and 4no. 

parallel parking

•	 Community Centre

•	 Basketball Courts

1

2
3

4
5

Spikes Bridge 
Park

Willowtree 
Marina

Br
oo

ks
id

e 
Ro

ad
6

7

A31
2

B&Q 
Store

Brookside 
Open Space

Figure 3    Prevailing winds - Information from Northolt RAF station by Windfinder

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

LEGEND

Open green area

Play area

Car parking

Community centre

Basketball courts

Pedestrian bridge

Spikes Bridge Park entrance

Civic entrances to the park

Nature reserve entrance to the park

Nature trail

Yeading Passage

The
 Pa

rkw
ay

5 min  
Walk Radius

10 min 
 Walk Radius

N

P
age 9



61000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

3.0	 Site Visit

Project Centre’s team has visited the site but due to adverse 

weather conditions this was also accompanied by a desktop 

study on the existing conditions.

The site is currently a vast grassed area, a very open, 

unsheltered and non-defined space which does not seem 

attractive to use. The existing topography is very flat, lending 

itself to the addition of sports facilities.

Figure 4    Location plan

1

1

4

2

5

3

6

2
3 5

6

4

P
age 10



7 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

4.0	 Case Study - Spikes Bridge Park

Spikes Bridge Park is a key case study for Brookside 

due to its proximity to the site. The budget for this 

refurbishment was approximately £2.2M and the park 

now includes the following components:

•	 4-team changing room pavillion

•	 Educational space

•	 Flexible community spaces

•	 Car parking - 21no. + Emergency vehicle parking

•	 3G football pitch

•	 Flood lighting

•	 Resurfaced athletics track

•	 6no. bay cricket nets

•	 2no. play areas

•	 Exercise equipment

•	 Nursery

•	 2no. tennis courts

•	 2no. MUGAs

•	 2no. cricket playing fields

•	 1no. senior + 1no. U16/U15 + 1no. U9/U8 turf 

football pitches

•	 2no. 5-a-side turf pitches + 1no. small training pitch

but its long-term future had yet to be secured. But, with renewed political interest, a continued demand by 
clubs and a growing population, the council decided to re-tender the opportunity to manage the sports 
facility in 2009.

As Julia Robertson, Active Ealing Sports Development Manager, explains, the sense of local ownership of 
the site remained strong, despite its poor condition.

"We knew this wasn't going to happen if we didn't have a credible community partner. Historically, the site 
has been the focus of extensive unauthorised use – what facilities were in place had been used to 
destruction by a local population that's obsessive about cricket, and the running track was also very 
popular".

The council has since capitalised on this local enthusiasm with an exciting community led scheme involving 
two community based organisations - London Tigers - a football team and community organisation, and 
Southall Community Alliance (SCA) – a local charity representing a wide range of smaller community 
groups in Southall. A 25 year lease, a low rent and a revenue commitment from the council to cover 
grounds maintenance, (approx £10k), and utility charges, will form the main terms of an agreement to 
regenerate the sport and leisure facilities in the park.

APPROACH TAKEN
A cross directorate team was established, including Parks, Property, Regeneration and Sports 
Development, with a view to transfer Spikes Bridge to a community partner to help meet the council's 
aspirations for the site. A new leasing pack, that clearly set out the council's long term vision, was prepared, 
which sought to obtain the following information from potential partners:

• Ideas and future plans for the use of Spikes Bridge

• A 'Method Statement' which asked for evidence of: experience; skills; organisational capacity; ability to 
maintain a mutually beneficial partnership and the submission of a Sports Development plan for the site, 
(the Sport England standard sports development plan template was suggested in the brief)

• Probity checks

• Financial accounts

• Eligibility to fundraise

• Confirmation of suitable governance arrangements in place, including: CRB, Equality and Diversity, 
Health and Safety, Insurance and Constitution.

The individual elements of the leasing pack were purposefully designed to extract information that would 
dovetail with the aspirations of different strategic partners at a national, regional, sub-regional and local 
level, including:

• "Game Plan, A strategy for delivering government's sport and physical activity objectives"

• The PE and School Clubs Links Strategy

• The "London Plan for Sport and Physical Activity"

• Pro Active West London, (one of 5 sub-regional partnerships in London)

• Active Ealing, (the borough-wide strategy for increasing sport and physical activity and access)

• The Football Association's "National Game Strategy"

• Middlesex County Football Association's Development Plan

• The England and Wales Cricket Board's vision.

As well as saving time in preparing future bids, evidence of strategic thinking also gave the council an early 
steer on those applicants who would demonstrate future credibility with a range of funders.

The transfer opportunity was advertised to all local contacts, (approx. 700 groups), through National 
Governing Bodies and posted on the council's website. Although London Tigers and SCA originally came 

Page 2 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

SPIKES BRIDGE PARK

Find out how the council’s strategic approach towards asset transfer has unlocked the potential of a problem site, and is now pointing the way to implementing further sport and active recreation 
improvements in the borough 

What will be learned from the case study?

• The added value benefits of working in partnership with community based organisations, to overcome 
the legacy of a stalled development

• How the council went about developing a mutually beneficial three way partnership with two community 
based organisations to deliver an improved community sports facility

• The benefits inherent in taking a long term strategic approach towards asset transfer, where learning by 
individual practice can inform and shape wider council policy.

SETTING THE SCENE
Spikes Bridge Park is located in the heart of Southall, in the south west of the London Borough of Ealing. 
Ealing has a population of circa 315,000, of which 41% belong to black or minority ethnic communities. 78% 
of Southall’s population is of minority ethnic origin.

Formally Southall Municipal Sports Ground, the 8.2 hectare open space site was once the hub of an 
extremely diverse community, traditionally of Indian and Pakistani origin. However, a lack of investment and 
intensive informal use had rapidly taken its toll on the ageing facilities, (the pavilion was demolished for 
health and safety reasons in 2007). A private sector led plan for re-development, (begun in 2002), failed to 
materialise, despite extensive negotiations, and its generally run-down condition had led to the site 
becoming an unwelcome focus for anti-social behaviour.

As part of the council's borough wide plan to create more Youth Provision, refurbishment of the fenced 
tarmac courts and unfenced tarmac, the creation of 3 tennis courts and a MUGA, was undertaken in 2010. 
A playing pitch strategy in 2007 had previously identified Spikes Bridge as a key site of local importance, 

Facilities

“What facilities were in place had been used to destruction by a local population that's obsessive about 
cricket, and the running track was also very popular”

Julia Roberston, sports development manager, Active Ealing

Page 1 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

but its long-term future had yet to be secured. But, with renewed political interest, a continued demand by 
clubs and a growing population, the council decided to re-tender the opportunity to manage the sports 
facility in 2009.

As Julia Robertson, Active Ealing Sports Development Manager, explains, the sense of local ownership of 
the site remained strong, despite its poor condition.

"We knew this wasn't going to happen if we didn't have a credible community partner. Historically, the site 
has been the focus of extensive unauthorised use – what facilities were in place had been used to 
destruction by a local population that's obsessive about cricket, and the running track was also very 
popular".

The council has since capitalised on this local enthusiasm with an exciting community led scheme involving 
two community based organisations - London Tigers - a football team and community organisation, and 
Southall Community Alliance (SCA) – a local charity representing a wide range of smaller community 
groups in Southall. A 25 year lease, a low rent and a revenue commitment from the council to cover 
grounds maintenance, (approx £10k), and utility charges, will form the main terms of an agreement to 
regenerate the sport and leisure facilities in the park.

APPROACH TAKEN
A cross directorate team was established, including Parks, Property, Regeneration and Sports 
Development, with a view to transfer Spikes Bridge to a community partner to help meet the council's 
aspirations for the site. A new leasing pack, that clearly set out the council's long term vision, was prepared, 
which sought to obtain the following information from potential partners:

• Ideas and future plans for the use of Spikes Bridge

• A 'Method Statement' which asked for evidence of: experience; skills; organisational capacity; ability to 
maintain a mutually beneficial partnership and the submission of a Sports Development plan for the site, 
(the Sport England standard sports development plan template was suggested in the brief)

• Probity checks

• Financial accounts

• Eligibility to fundraise

• Confirmation of suitable governance arrangements in place, including: CRB, Equality and Diversity, 
Health and Safety, Insurance and Constitution.

The individual elements of the leasing pack were purposefully designed to extract information that would 
dovetail with the aspirations of different strategic partners at a national, regional, sub-regional and local 
level, including:

• "Game Plan, A strategy for delivering government's sport and physical activity objectives"

• The PE and School Clubs Links Strategy

• The "London Plan for Sport and Physical Activity"

• Pro Active West London, (one of 5 sub-regional partnerships in London)

• Active Ealing, (the borough-wide strategy for increasing sport and physical activity and access)

• The Football Association's "National Game Strategy"

• Middlesex County Football Association's Development Plan

• The England and Wales Cricket Board's vision.

As well as saving time in preparing future bids, evidence of strategic thinking also gave the council an early 
steer on those applicants who would demonstrate future credibility with a range of funders.

The transfer opportunity was advertised to all local contacts, (approx. 700 groups), through National 
Governing Bodies and posted on the council's website. Although London Tigers and SCA originally came 

Page 2 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

forward with separate proposals, during the evaluation stage the council considered that the organisations' 
ideas were extremely complementary, and subsequently encouraged them to consider making a new joint 
proposal.

This suggestion was agreed between the two organisations, and a consultant 
was appointed by the two organisations to work up a more detailed proposal 
for the council, which was subsequently agreed.

The initial expressions of interest stage took 6 week to complete. The second 
stage, which included formal proposal submissions, evaluation, interviews 
and preferred partner selection, took 10 weeks. The process included officer 
time to get to the position of agreement and minimal legal and property 
management costs.

"Issues around the 5 year business plan were important to get right", says 
Julia. "We tested the groups' assumptions around running costs using internal 
benchmarks, and the need for a sinking fund was clarified early on. 

Responsibilities would be split for grounds maintenance. For example, the groups would take on aspects 
such as 'dressing the wicket', while the council will continue with broader grounds maintenance 
responsibilities."

Cabinet approval was gained to delegate approvals and speed up the transfer process. An outline timetable 
was prepared so that all stakeholders' expectations were managed, including those of councillors and 
residents.

OUTCOMES AND IMPACT
A three way partnership has now been established, with the following consortium vision:

A phased approach to delivery has been agreed between partners. The first phase consists of creating a 4 
changing room pavilion, educational space, flexible community spaces, car parking, a 3rd generation pitch, 
(essential to the viability of the scheme), floodlighting, (subject to planning), resurfaced athletics track and 
provision of 6 bay cricket nets.

Phase one elements have a capital cost of £1.7m excluding professional fees. The council has agreed to 
lead on planning advice, technical drawings, the landscape architect and achieve VAT savings on 
purchases. London Tigers, (who will eventually be established as the lease holder with a 25 year 
agreement), and SCA will lead on external funding bids, engaging with the community in the consultation 
process and marketing and promotion leading up to the opening of the new facility. A management 
committee will be developed to ensure ongoing support of the local community who have a significant 
vested interest in the site.

A formal partnership agreement enshrines the fact that the consortium is entering into a development 
agreement, rather than a landlord and tenant arrangement. The partnership agreement covers the following 
shared interests:

KEY OBJECTIVES
• A schedule of allocated partner tasks and responsibilities, including the provision to renegotiate the 

same at any time during the term

• Performance monitoring, (via quarterly project meetings)

• Financial terms

• Confidentiality, Freedom of Information, Data Protection, Branding and Publicity terms

• Maintenance of accurate records

6

week initial 
expressions of interest 

period

“Together we aim to develop and promote excellent recreational facilities that have full community 
involvement, are safe, accessible and sustainable. We will forge positive relationships with statutory 
partners, external funders, local sports groups and residents to regenerate the park area”

Page 3 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

Figure 5    Layout of Spikes Bridge Park facilities Figure 6    Spikes Bridge Case Study (Sports England, www.sportsengland.org accessed March 2018)

P
age 11



81000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

4.1	 Case Study - Spike Bridge Park

forward with separate proposals, during the evaluation stage the council considered that the organisations' 
ideas were extremely complementary, and subsequently encouraged them to consider making a new joint 
proposal.

This suggestion was agreed between the two organisations, and a consultant 
was appointed by the two organisations to work up a more detailed proposal 
for the council, which was subsequently agreed.

The initial expressions of interest stage took 6 week to complete. The second 
stage, which included formal proposal submissions, evaluation, interviews 
and preferred partner selection, took 10 weeks. The process included officer 
time to get to the position of agreement and minimal legal and property 
management costs.

"Issues around the 5 year business plan were important to get right", says 
Julia. "We tested the groups' assumptions around running costs using internal 
benchmarks, and the need for a sinking fund was clarified early on. 

Responsibilities would be split for grounds maintenance. For example, the groups would take on aspects 
such as 'dressing the wicket', while the council will continue with broader grounds maintenance 
responsibilities."

Cabinet approval was gained to delegate approvals and speed up the transfer process. An outline timetable 
was prepared so that all stakeholders' expectations were managed, including those of councillors and 
residents.

OUTCOMES AND IMPACT
A three way partnership has now been established, with the following consortium vision:

A phased approach to delivery has been agreed between partners. The first phase consists of creating a 4 
changing room pavilion, educational space, flexible community spaces, car parking, a 3rd generation pitch, 
(essential to the viability of the scheme), floodlighting, (subject to planning), resurfaced athletics track and 
provision of 6 bay cricket nets.

Phase one elements have a capital cost of £1.7m excluding professional fees. The council has agreed to 
lead on planning advice, technical drawings, the landscape architect and achieve VAT savings on 
purchases. London Tigers, (who will eventually be established as the lease holder with a 25 year 
agreement), and SCA will lead on external funding bids, engaging with the community in the consultation 
process and marketing and promotion leading up to the opening of the new facility. A management 
committee will be developed to ensure ongoing support of the local community who have a significant 
vested interest in the site.

A formal partnership agreement enshrines the fact that the consortium is entering into a development 
agreement, rather than a landlord and tenant arrangement. The partnership agreement covers the following 
shared interests:

KEY OBJECTIVES
• A schedule of allocated partner tasks and responsibilities, including the provision to renegotiate the 

same at any time during the term

• Performance monitoring, (via quarterly project meetings)

• Financial terms

• Confidentiality, Freedom of Information, Data Protection, Branding and Publicity terms

• Maintenance of accurate records

6

week initial 
expressions of interest 

period

“Together we aim to develop and promote excellent recreational facilities that have full community 
involvement, are safe, accessible and sustainable. We will forge positive relationships with statutory 
partners, external funders, local sports groups and residents to regenerate the park area”

Page 3 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

• Termination terms, (and consequences)

• Liability and Indemnity terms

• Insurance

• Dispute Resolution process.

Both external and internal capital funding, (£200k from the council), has been identified and gained. One 
has successfully levered the other. Three major grant bids, totalling £950k, are currently underway to the 
Football Association, the London Mayors Legacy Fund PlaySport and the London Marathon Trust. If 
successful with these funding applications, work will start on site in summer 2011, subject to planning and 
successful procurement.

The experience of Spikes Bridge has also contributed to the refinement of the council's asset transfer 
process. A rent subsidy method has been established to balance the council's need to meet its 'fiduciary 
duty' to manage its assets in a way that makes best use of resources, against the economic, social and 
sporting impacts implied by the partnership arrangement.

The rent subsidy methodology is based on the degree to which community sports organisations meet 
standard criteria. Maximum points are awarded for the attainment of Sport England Clubmark or National 
Governing Body of Sport equivalent. Supplementary points are gained for the demonstration of the 
following:

• Appropriate NGB affiliation

• Qualified coaches

• Insurances in place

• Open membership and equity policies

• An agreed Sports Development Plan

• A commitment to maintaining and developing school-club links

• Appropriate monitoring and evaluations processes

• CASC registered, (if appropriate)

• Governance arrangements in place

• Need and demand led

• External funding secured.

As Julia explains, the council's pragmatic approach to a rent subsidy for Spikes Bridge remains evidence 
based.

"We decided that meeting all our criteria would warrant an 80% reduction in market rent. In this instance, 
our community based partners are providing significant added value. If, as a result of their intervention, the 
capital improvements are realised and more users can benefit from an enhanced site, then the value for 
money argument is easily won."

The consortium partnership for Spikes Bridge has been led by the community, for the community, with the 
underpinning reassurance of a local authority presence. The council has confidence in the community 
partnership to deliver against community need, and the community partners are satisfied with the 
arrangement that day-to-day management of the site is their responsibility.

Overall, the outcome of the approach taken by the council and its community based partnership is pointing 
the way to a sustainable and long-term future for Spikes Bridge. What was, until recently, a council facility 
that was attracting political and community attention for all the wrong reasons, is now a focus for 
neighbourhood regeneration and local pride. As a result of the possibilities that have emerged as a result of 
the approach for Spikes Bridge, its appropriate replication across similar challenging sites in the borough is 
now a top priority.

Page 4 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

• Termination terms, (and consequences)

• Liability and Indemnity terms

• Insurance

• Dispute Resolution process.

Both external and internal capital funding, (£200k from the council), has been identified and gained. One 
has successfully levered the other. Three major grant bids, totalling £950k, are currently underway to the 
Football Association, the London Mayors Legacy Fund PlaySport and the London Marathon Trust. If 
successful with these funding applications, work will start on site in summer 2011, subject to planning and 
successful procurement.

The experience of Spikes Bridge has also contributed to the refinement of the council's asset transfer 
process. A rent subsidy method has been established to balance the council's need to meet its 'fiduciary 
duty' to manage its assets in a way that makes best use of resources, against the economic, social and 
sporting impacts implied by the partnership arrangement.

The rent subsidy methodology is based on the degree to which community sports organisations meet 
standard criteria. Maximum points are awarded for the attainment of Sport England Clubmark or National 
Governing Body of Sport equivalent. Supplementary points are gained for the demonstration of the 
following:

• Appropriate NGB affiliation

• Qualified coaches

• Insurances in place

• Open membership and equity policies

• An agreed Sports Development Plan

• A commitment to maintaining and developing school-club links

• Appropriate monitoring and evaluations processes

• CASC registered, (if appropriate)

• Governance arrangements in place

• Need and demand led

• External funding secured.

As Julia explains, the council's pragmatic approach to a rent subsidy for Spikes Bridge remains evidence 
based.

"We decided that meeting all our criteria would warrant an 80% reduction in market rent. In this instance, 
our community based partners are providing significant added value. If, as a result of their intervention, the 
capital improvements are realised and more users can benefit from an enhanced site, then the value for 
money argument is easily won."

The consortium partnership for Spikes Bridge has been led by the community, for the community, with the 
underpinning reassurance of a local authority presence. The council has confidence in the community 
partnership to deliver against community need, and the community partners are satisfied with the 
arrangement that day-to-day management of the site is their responsibility.

Overall, the outcome of the approach taken by the council and its community based partnership is pointing 
the way to a sustainable and long-term future for Spikes Bridge. What was, until recently, a council facility 
that was attracting political and community attention for all the wrong reasons, is now a focus for 
neighbourhood regeneration and local pride. As a result of the possibilities that have emerged as a result of 
the approach for Spikes Bridge, its appropriate replication across similar challenging sites in the borough is 
now a top priority.

Page 4 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS
• Agree what you want to do with the site - establish an easily understandable and clear vision for 

potential bidders, evidenced by need, (the proposal for Spikes Bridge is in-line with current Government 
thinking on the provision of multi-sport hub sites that are able to service a wide range of users)

• Design the process to get the best out of potential partners. The council were open to ideas, the 
'interview' was informal and explanatory. Meetings were scheduled in the evening to accommodate 
volunteers' availability, (in retrospect, the council feel that it could have included less council-specific 
obligations and jargon in the original brief, and still ensured due diligence was met)

• Do not underestimate the level of professional support that a council has to offer, in terms of planning, 
project management and supporting external funding bids

• Get planning involved early on, so issues like floodlights can be addressed

• If the transfer is to be a success, the council must remain involved throughout the process and in the 
future, as part of a management committee or similar

• Although cross-departmental arrangements are essential, decide who is going to lead overall, and on the 
various element into the future, such as monitoring progress

• A long term view is essential. Ongoing revenue funding, rent subsidy and general resource commitment 
are vital ingredients underpinning the viability and sustainability of Spikes Bridge

• Residents welcome the fact that a community based partnership is providing a visible leading role. There 
are fewer concerns about whether residents' views are going to be heard. As the roots of community 
based organisations go deeper in the community, they work more naturally and quickly as accountable 
providers than the local authority.

CONTACT DETAILS
Julia Robertson, Active Ealing Sports Development Manager
Environment and Leisure, 1st floor, Perceval House, 14 - 16 Uxbridge Road, Ealing W5 2HL
julia.robertson@ealing.gov.uk

Share
Share this
Twitter
Facebook
Email to a friend
Download

Page 5 of 5Spikes Bridge Park - Sport England

01/03/2018https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/community-asset-transfer/case-studi...

Figure 7    Spikes Bridge Case Study (Sports England, www.sportsengland.org accessed March 2018) Figure 8    New practice cricket nets at Spikes Bridge Park (Sports England)

P
age 12



9 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

Our proposals take into consideration standard guidelines in 

regard to best-practice in orientation of open-air sports facilities. 

This is a key element for ensuring that the pitches are fit for 

purpose and performance will not be affected by the sun.

The team also considered how the context and access will inform 

the proposals for the park. The park should still be perceived as 

a predominantely green space with ecological relevance but the 

character will vary from a more urban park with quite defined 

sports and leisure facilities (i.e. 3G football pitch, tennis courts, 

running track, play areas, cafe, etc) to a more natural looking 

setting with playing fields, landforms, open lawns and wildflower 

meadows.

This subtle variance will give an added value to the park in terms 

of attracting a wider audience as well as making the connection 

to the Yeading Brook Meadows nature reserve more obvious.  

The proposals will also look to improve the woodland on the 

southern boundary, ie further opportunities to create nature trails, 

link with other wildlife features, improve biodiversity and create 

drainage swales for on site SuDS drainage.  

Wherever possible, the team will aim to retain all earth 

excavations on site. Any excavated material can be re-used to 

form new landforms, providing a more interesting and sheltered 

landscape.

Our proposals also recognise the close proximity to housing on 

the North boundary and the possible planning issues this might 

create, ie lighting spill and noise. 

The area adjacent to the Brookside Road entrance, which contains 

the open green area, play area, car parking, community centre 

and basketball courts, could also be integrated in the next stage 

of design. This would provide the opportunity for the masterplan 

to articulate the park and its main entrance which in turn could 

accomodate for an increase in the car parking provision as well 

as additional facilities whilst the sports and play component 

would be integrated within the park.    

5.0	 Design Principles

Figure 9    Sports orientation guide

U
RB

AN

N
AT

U
RE

Figure 10    Definition of character within park

P
age 13



101000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

6.0	 Concept Design Options

Project Centre has looked at different concept design options for the 

layout of the basic sports facilities required in the brief document. 

Layouts for the paths have been included in each option to provide 

an understanding of how the space could function, as well as 

indicating the areas left over once the primary sports facilities have 

been allowed for. The potential for utilising these leftover areas for 

other actvities will be highlighted in more detail in the following 

chapters.

Option 1 has an orthogonal arrangement which includes 4no. 

tennis courts, a running track with a 3G football pitch infield, a 

cricket playing field, a senior football playing field and 2no. U9/

U8 football playing fields. All these elements are aligned to the 

north path leaving some empty areas to the south which provide 

opportunity to include additional features for the park. This option 

has been progressed into a high level masterplan.

Option 2 shows a different orthogonal configuration which includes 

4no. tennis courts, a 3G football pitch, a cricket playing field, a 

senior football playing field and 2no. U9/U8 football playing fields. 

The running track was removed from this option due to the proximity 

of the running track facilities at Spikes Bridge Park. It was felt that the 

offer of a formal running track was fairly niche and that the network 

of paths would provide ample space for informal jogging activity. 

This option positions the sports facilities at the centre of the open 

space leaving the edges to more civic or nature related uses.

Option 3 shows a more informal layout which includes a running 

track with an athletics space infield, 4no. tennis courts, a cricket 

playing field, a senior football playing field and 2no. U9/U8 

football playing fields. This option does not include a 3G football 

pitch which would help keep costs down. It also creates a very direct 

link between the Brookside Road entrance and the Yeading Brook 

Meadow nature reserve.

Option 4 shows a more meandering informal layout which 

provides very interesting possibilities in terms of the layout of the 

sport facilities. This option contains the same sports facilities as 

Option 1 but due to its more organic configuration it is less effective 

in terms of possible uses for the space i.e. the left over spaces are 

less adaptable. The meandering quality of paths lends itself well to 

landform whilst creating more relaxed (less direct) routes. 

N

N

N

N

Figure 11    Proposed layout Option 1 Figure 12    Proposed layout Option 2

Figure 13    Proposed layout Option 3 Figure 14    Proposed layout Option 4

P
age 14



11 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

6.1	 Concept Design Options

Table 1 compares the key sports facility features included 

in each option.

Options 1 and 4 include all the sporting facilities initially 

outlined in the brief. Where as, Option 2 explores the 

exclusion of the running track and Option 3 the exclusion 

of the Senior 3G pitch (replaced by additional athletics 

facilities).

The resulting paths are compared in terms of connectivity 

and layout and the leftover spaces are assessed for how 

adaptable they will be in terms of providing additional 

features for the park.

Tennis 
Courts

Natural Turf 
sports 

pitches 
(Cricket and 

Football)

Running 
Track

Senior 3G 
pitch

Option 1 ○ ○ ○ ○

Orthogonal grid layout with southern 
meandering route from Brookside 
Road entrance to Yeading Brook 

nature reserve entrance

5 well defined zones of relatively similar sizes

Option 2 ○ ○ ○

Orthogonal grid layout with southern 
indirect route from Brookside Road 
entrance to Yeading Brook nature 

reserve entrance 

4 well defined zones - 2 large rectangular 
forms, 2 triangular

Option 3 ○ ○ ○

Informal geometric layout with 
diagonal direct connection between 

Brookside Road entrance to Yeading 
Brook nature reserve entrance

5-6 defined zones - triangular in form / some
narrower or more irregular spaces

Option 4 ○ ○ ○ ○

Informal layout with curving  
connection between Brookside Road 

entrance to Yeading Brook nature 
reserve entrance

3 - 4 defined zones - 1 large space, and several 
irregular smaller sized spaces / pockets

Sports facilities specified in brief

Path layout 
Left over spaces for additional 

features / facilities

*This option could include additional athletics facilities infield

*

Table 1    Comparison of concept design options

P
age 15



121000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

7.0	 High Level Concept Design Masterplan

The concept masterplan develops  Option 1 

illustrating how the elements in the brief can be 

complemented with additional features that make this 

park not only a benchmark for sports activities but 

also an important civic hub with a clear social and 

ecological agenda.

In addition to the elements stated on the brief (tennis 

courts, running track, football playing fields for 

different ages and cricket playing fields) we have 

added the following:

•	 Structure tree planting which will help to break 

down the scale of the space, define spaces and 

routes, add seasonal interest, provide shade 

and shelter, mitigate strong winds and enhance 

biodiversity  

•	 Landforms will help define spaces, shelter 

from winds, create visual interest as well as 

opportunities for seating overlooking sports 

activities 

•	 Cafe building with an outdoor seating area and 

an adventure playground 

•	 3G football pitch on the running track infield 

•	 Exercise equipment and street furniture spread 

throughout the site

•	 Improved lighting which will contribute to a 

safe environment as well as for activities to be 

prolonged into the early evening

•	 Additional wildflower meadow areas which add 

interest, whilst having low maintenance regimes 

and further supporting bio-diversity.

•	 Skate/Bicycle park which will attract different 

users to the park whilst creating visual interest to 

the people laying on the grass

•	 Animal enclosures to provide protected habitats 

to certain animal species whilst having an 

educational role about biodiversity.

1

2

6

3

7

4

5

9

10

8

11

12

13

15

1614

N

1

2

3

Figure 15    High level concept design masterplan

LEGEND

4

Adventure play area

Cafe/Reception

Tennis courts

Running track

5

6

7

8

Exercise equipment

3G football pitch

Medium-size landforms

Small-size landforms

9

10

11

12

Large-size landforms

U9/U8 footbal playing fields

Cricket playing field

Senior football playing field

13

14

15

16

Skate park

West-facing lawn

Animal enclosure

Trail to Yeading Brook Meadow natural reserve 

P
age 16



13 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

8.0	 Elements - Precedents

Cricket Playing Fields Cricket Nets Football Playing Fields 3G Football Pitch

MUGA Running Track Tennis Courts Exercise Equipment

The following precedents illustrate the different elements that could be included in the park.

P
age 17



141000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

8.1	 Elements - Precedents

Animal Enclosures Cafe Car Parking Organic Food Growing

Paddling Pool Skate Park Adventure Playground Earthworks

P
age 18



15 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

8.2	 Elements - Precedents

Day Nursery Table Tennis Climbing Wildflower Meadows

Community Centre Lawn Areas Public Art Park Toilets

P
age 19



161000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

9.0	 High Level Cost Estimate

Item No./Area Price Assumptions

Preliminary Works Lump Sum £75,000.00 Assumed

Tennis Courts 4 £355,000.00 Based on Sports England facility 
costs document

Running Track 1 £300,000.00

Adjusted from Sports England 
facility costs document. Assumed 
that lighting, infill grass and other 

equipment are excluded 
Senior Football 3G 

(including flood lights)
1 £750,000.00 Adjusted from Sports England 

facility costs document
Cricket Natural Turf Pitch 

(including winter sports pitches and cricket table)
1 £270,000.00 Based on Sports England facility 

costs document

Changing rooms 1 £245,000.00 Based on Sports England facility 
costs document

Car Parking 250m2 
additional

£50,000.00 To be reviewed

Trees 32 £32,000.00 Assumed £1000 per tree

Main Paths 8680m2 £434,000.00 Assumed £50/m2 (to include 
emergency vehicle access)

Secondary paths Hard Areas 1302m2 £65,100.00 Assumed 15% of main paths and 
£50/m2

Drainage Lump Sum £100,000.00 Assumed
Lighting Lump Sum £300,000.00 Assumed

Street furniture Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed
Soft Landscape Lump Sum £150,000.00 Assumed

CCTV Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed
Design Fees Lump Sum £175,000.00 Assumed

TOTAL £3,401,100.00

TOTAL + 20% CONTINGENCY £4,081,320.00

Yearly maintenaince £10,000.00 Assumed

Item No./Area Price Assumptions

Skate Park 1 £200,000.00 Adjusted from Sports England 
facility costs document

Play Area 1 £150,000.00 Assumed
Wayfinding/Signage Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed

Public Art Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed
Cafe 1 £450,000.00 Assumed

Exercise Equipment Various £50,000.00 Assumed

TOTAL £950,000.00
TOTAL + 20% CONTINGENCY £1,140,000.00

Item No./Area Price Assumptions

Preliminary Works Lump Sum £75,000.00 Assumed

Tennis Courts 4 £355,000.00 Based on Sports England facility 
costs document

Running Track 1 £300,000.00

Adjusted from Sports England 
facility costs document. Assumed 
that lighting, infill grass and other 

equipment are excluded 
Senior Football 3G 

(including flood lights)
1 £750,000.00 Adjusted from Sports England 

facility costs document
Cricket Natural Turf Pitch 

(including winter sports pitches and cricket table)
1 £270,000.00 Based on Sports England facility 

costs document

Changing rooms 1 £245,000.00 Based on Sports England facility 
costs document

Car Parking 250m2 
additional

£50,000.00 To be reviewed

Trees 32 £32,000.00 Assumed £1000 per tree

Main Paths 8680m2 £434,000.00 Assumed £50/m2 (to include 
emergency vehicle access)

Secondary paths Hard Areas 1302m2 £65,100.00 Assumed 15% of main paths and 
£50/m2

Drainage Lump Sum £100,000.00 Assumed
Lighting Lump Sum £300,000.00 Assumed

Street furniture Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed
Soft Landscape Lump Sum £150,000.00 Assumed

CCTV Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed
Design Fees Lump Sum £175,000.00 Assumed

TOTAL £3,401,100.00

TOTAL + 20% CONTINGENCY £4,081,320.00

Yearly maintenaince £10,000.00 Assumed

Item No./Area Price Assumptions

Skate Park 1 £200,000.00 Adjusted from Sports England 
facility costs document

Play Area 1 £150,000.00 Assumed
Wayfinding/Signage Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed

Public Art Lump Sum £50,000.00 Assumed
Cafe 1 £450,000.00 Assumed

Exercise Equipment Various £50,000.00 Assumed

TOTAL £950,000.00
TOTAL + 20% CONTINGENCY £1,140,000.00

Table 2    High Level cost estimate to brief

Table 3    High Level cost estimate of additional features

Project Centre has developed a high level cost estimate for Brookside Open Space 

Masterplan that responds to the brief and outlines indicative costs for additional 

elements that the council might consider to include on the scheme.

On Table 2 the team included the elements on the brief such as: 

•	 Tennis courts

•	 Running track

•	 Sports pitches which include a 3G senior football pitch and a cricket natural turf 

pitch (which includes one senior football pitch and two U9/U8 football pitches 

as part of the overlay and a 6 lane cricket table )

•	 Lighting

•	 Pathways

•	 CCTV

Also included in Table 2 are other elements such as Preliminaries, Drainage, Car 

Parking, Earthworks, Trees, Planting/Lawn, Changing rooms, Street Furniture and 

Design Fees, which the team deemed as absolutely necessary for the scheme.

On Table 3 we have included indicative sums for additional elements shown on the 

high level concept design masterplan such as:

-	 Skate Park

-	 Adventure Play Area

-	 Wayfinding/Signage

-	 Public Art

-	 Cafe

-	 Exercise Equipment

These elements could be crucial to the civic and social quality of the scheme.

The team would suggest that an annual sum of £30K would be assumed for 

maintenance at this stage. This is an indicative amount which we feel will provide a 

robust baseline in comparison to the approximate amount of 10K stated for Spikes 

Bridge Park maintenance.

This cost estimate is indicative at this point and would need to be further developed 

together with Hillingdon Council to ensure that both brief and budget are aligned.

Note: These amounts are highly indicative at this point and the team has made some adjustments to the sports facility costs 
provided by Sports England such as the 3G senior football pitch and the running track which seemed uneccesarily costly for 
such a recreational setting. We have included a 20% contingency to retain some flexibility within our cost estimate.

We have also taken into consideration the £2.2M budget spent on refurbishing Spikes Bridge Park as a benchmark for our 
cost estimate.  

These amounts would be refined further during the next stage of design.

Hillingdon Council to determine costs for services infrastructure (not included in this cost estimate).

P
age 20



17 1000004529 - Brookside Open Space Masterplan 	 © Project Centre 2018

10.0	 Conclusions and Recommendations

Conclusions: 

The Council’s ambition to enhance this large-scale green space and create a new sports 

and social hub provides a substantial opportunity for realising the potential of Brookside 

Open Space as a pleasant and well designed park that caters for the needs of the local 

residential population. This proposal will focus on creating a sense of place for the local 

community as well as ensuring that the area feels safe and connected to the adjacent 

nature reserve. The design will also be in line with current agendas where healthy living 

and SuDS are a priority. 

The high level design solutions presented are based on Project Centre’s experience 

in high quality landscape design. This exercise aims to kick start the design process 

ensuring that the council has a good basis to make a more informed decision on what 

the aspirations will be for Brookside Open Space. 

The design aims to provide substantial improvements to the quality of Brookside Open 

Space with a focus on: 

•	 Providing a wide variety of sports and leisure activities that will engage all age 

groups and create a high-value asset that promotes healthy living 

•	 Reducing anti-social behaviour around the area by engaging the younger 

population

•	 Increase the sports and leisure provision giving a better choice to the residents 

•	 Increasing the number of trees as a key element to improve air quality as well as 

reinforce ecological corridors to promote enhanced biodiversity 

•	 Provide lighting, additional seating and cycling facilities all within defined routes 

that will help make movement easier

•	 Provide tree planting and earthworks to enhance shelter from wind and rain 

•	 Increase connectivity to the nature reserve  

A facility of this size would need to be economically viable and as indicated generate 

a revenue which the Council needs to determine. The facilities shown would need to 

attract a certain number of people to be viable and therefore dictate other infrastructure 

such as car parking and basic facilities which would need to match, ie toilets, changing 

rooms, parking, etc.

Our proposals aim to create a high quality civic park that clearly improves the 

experience for residents and visitors as well as taking into consideration sports-related 

requirements.

Recommendations: 

In order to take this design forward we recommend the following tasks to be 

undertaken: 

•	 Clarify brief for sports facilities for the park including size of pitches 

•	 Clarify brief for civic and leisure facilities for the park i.e. lawn areas, cafe, play 

areas

•	 Clarify opportunity for new community facilities i.e. community centres, day nursery, 

etc

•	 Further clarity on funding for project

•	 Assessment revenue generator elements within the park e.g. cafe, tennis courts, 3G 

football pitch

•	 Clarify time of use for the park i.e. would it be open 24 hours? 

•	 Commission of ground infiltration survey 

•	 Commission of flood risk assessment 

•	 Comission of biodiversity survey

•	 Commission of topographic and C2 survey information

•	 Early stakeholder engagement

•	 Early sponsor and strategic partner engagement 

•	 Early engagement of council representatives for lighting, planting, street furniture, 

etc. to understand approvals process and maintenance requirements

•	 Council to determine any planning limitations on the site and do an economic 

appraisal 

•	 Traffic survey to determine traffic impact on local streets of additional visitors to the 

site

•	 Car parking requirements

•	 Cycle parking requirements and cycle strategy within the park

•	 Understanding accessibility requirements

•	 Development of the tree planting and SUDs strategy for the project

•	 Development of a material palette 

•	 Council to determine costs for services infrastructure

•	 Clarification of programme

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
 

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 26 September 2018 

PETITION REQUESTING INSTALLATION OF A WATER FOUNTAIN AND 
TOILETS AT THE RUNNING TRACK AT KINGS COLLEGE PLAYING FIELDS 

Cabinet Member(s) Councillor Jonathan Bianco

Cabinet Portfolio(s) Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Business Services

Officer Contact(s) Adrian Batten, Residents Services

Papers with report None

HEADLINES

Summary This report concerns a petition received requesting the installation 
of a water fountain and toilets at the running track at Kings College 
playing fields.

Putting our 
Residents First

This report supports the following Council objectives of: Our People; 
Our Natural Environment; Our Built Environment; Our Heritage and 
Civic Pride; Strong financial management.

Financial Cost Installation of a water drinking fountain, excluding running and 
maintenance costs: £3,868 (completed)
Installation of a toilet facility, approximately: £45,000 with annual 
maintenance costs approximately £5,000.

Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee

Residents', Education and Environmental Services 

Relevant Ward(s) Eastcote and East Ruislip

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Business Services:   
1. meets with and listens to the petitioners’ concerns;
2. notes the actions/investigations already undertaken by officers; and 
3. subject to recommendation 1, considers asking officers to commission further 

independent surveys at Kings College to be agreed with petitioners and Ward 
Members.

Reasons for recommendations

To give the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss with the petitioners their concerns and 
aspirations. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
 

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 26 September 2018 

Alternative options considered / risk management

Options will be discussed with the petitioners. 

To investigate in further detail the potential to address the petitioners' concerns. 

Update the lease agreement in March 2019, when the current lease expires, to include extending 
the toilet opening hours and look into feasibility and cost to modify the building to provide access 
to the toilets once the cafe has closed, including management of the new layout within the updated 
lease.

To purchase and install a toilet facility, similar to the one at West Drayton Cemetery. This will 
include an initial cost of a minimum of £45,000 plus ongoing costs, including regular cleaning, 
opening and closing the building, water rates, electricity and ad hoc maintenance at approximately 
£5,000 a year.

For residents to apply for a toilet facility through Hillingdon Council's Chrysalis programme, should 
this option be required.

Policy Overview Committee comments

None at this stage.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. A petition with 30 valid signatures has been received by the Council from residents who live 
in the vicinity of Ruislip and Eastcote.  The petition is worded as follows:

"Petition for toilets and water fountain at Kings College Playing Fields Ruislip".

2. The petitioners are specifically concerned with what they report as: 
● A lack of a drinking fountain at Kings College Playing Fields.
● A lack of a toilet facility at Kings College Playing Fields.

3. Kings College playing fields is a large site in the middle of a built up part of the Borough.  It 
is popular with many local residents and contains a running track, outdoor gym and skate 
park.  The site offers a tranquil area to walk around as well as pleasant cut through.  A 
conservation party meet on site to carry out regular works, managing the site for the benefit 
of wildlife.  It is the home ground of Ruislip Rangers football club.  At the site, there is a cafe 
that has toilet facilities.  

4. The concerns about a lack of a drinking fountain has been addressed as part of a Borough 
wide project to reintroduce drinking fountains across the Borough to encourage people to 
either recycle their plastic bottles or to reduce the need for a plastic bottle, instead drinking 
directly from the fountain.  A new drinking fountain was installed in 2018.

5. Following receipt of the petition, officers have spoken to the cafe owner about concerns that 
he was not allowing those who needed to use the onsite toilets to do so.  The cafe owner 
has confirmed that he has no objections to those who need to use the toilet doing so within 
opening hours.  Concerns have been expressed that the cafe closes early so there is no 
access to a toilet at all times, hence the petitioners’ request.  Although officers have been 
working with the incumbent to allow the toilet facilities to be open later, due to a downturn in 

Page 24



PART I - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
 

Cabinet Member Petition Hearing – 26 September 2018 

use, longer opening hours are not a viable option.  However, more could be done to advertise 
that the toilet in the cafe is open to the public and free for them to use.

6. It should be noted that less than 10% of open spaces in the Borough have toilet facilities on 
site.

Financial Implications

The installation of a water drinking fountain was completed in 2018 at a cost of £4k.  There is no 
additional annual running costs for this facility.

The report recommends the investigation of the proposed installation of an additional toilet facility 
at Kings College Playing Field at a cost of £45k which can be funded from the £1,000k Chrysalis 
2019/20 budget subject to the relevant approvals.  The cost estimate is based on the recent 
provision of a toilet facility at West Drayton cemetery. 

The installation of the toilet facility will incur additional annual maintenance costs of £5k for which 
a funding strategy will need to be identified.

An alternative option would be not to build the additional toilet facility but provide daily access to 
toilet facilities within the on site cafe by modifying the building.  As the lease for the cafe is up for 
renewal next year, a clause can be written in the new lease agreement to allow the toilet facilities 
open to the public.  The current lease holder of the cafe does not have any objections to the public 
using the toilet facilities within the cafe.  The cost to modify the existing building is expected to be 
below £10k and may be taken into account in lease renewal negotiations. 

RESIDENT BENEFIT & CONSULTATION

The benefit or impact upon Hillingdon residents, service users and communities?

The Petition Hearing will allow for consideration of petitioners’ concerns with the required facilities 
and possible options to come to an amicable agreement. 

Consultation carried out or required

None at this stage. 

CORPORATE CONSIDERATIONS 

Corporate Finance

Corporate Finance has reviewed this report and confirms that there are no direct financial 
implications arising from the recommended consideration petitioners’ concerns.  Specific costs 
relating to potential courses of actions are detailed above.

Legal

Borough Solicitor confirms that there are no specific legal implications arising from this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Petition 759.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Petition Regarding Brookside Playing Fields
	Appendix
	1.0	Introduction
	2.0	Site Analysis
	3.0	Site Visit
	4.0	Case Study - Spikes Bridge Park
	5.0	Design Principles
	6.0	Concept Design Options
	7.0	High Level Concept Design Masterplan
	8.0	Elements - Precedents
	9.0	High Level Cost Estimate
	10.0	Conclusions and Recommendations



	5 Petition Requesting Installation Of A Water Fountain And Toilets At The Running Track At Kings College Playing Fields

